
                 
  Public Notice of Meeting 

             WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE SCHOOL BOARD  
                                            MEETING & WORKSHOP 
                                                 Tuesday, May 28, 2019 
                 Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School-Media Room 

       6:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

  
 

I. CALL TO ORDER-Matthew Ballou-Chair  
 

II. PRESENTATION-Middle School Challenge Options 
 

III. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
a. Add Second Public Comment 

 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS: This is the public’s opportunity to speak to items on the agenda.  In the 

interest of preserving individual privacy and due process rights, the Board requests that comments 
(including complaints) regarding individual employees or students be directed to the Superintendent 
in accord with the processes set forth in School Board Policies KE and KEB.  Must be at 
beginning of mtg. per policy 

  
V. RESIGNATIONS/APPOINTMENTS/LEAVES  

a. Appointments 
i. Melissa Levesque-LCS Preschool Teacher 

b. Resignations 
i. Molly Moore Lazar-WLC MS Social Studies Teacher 

 
VI. ACTION ITEMS 

a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meetings 
b. Property & Liability Program 
c. Technology Audit Bid 
 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT  
 

IX. SCHOOL BOARD WORKSHOP 
i. Communication 

ii. Strategic Planning-Assign Tasks/ Prioritize 
iii. Committee Membership  
iv. Live Recordings/Social Media-Presentation-John Clark 
v. Goals and Objectives 

 
 
 
 

  
 
 

 

INFORMATION:  Next School Board Meeting‐June 11, 6:30 PM at FRES‐Library 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation, 

gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.  



















 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  The WLC School Board 
FROM:  Bryan Lane 
DATE:  5/20/19 
RE:  Nomination for Preschool Teacher 
 
Please accept this as the nomination for Melissa Levesque as the Preschool teacher at the Lyndeborough 
Central School.  Melissa is completing her Bachelor of Arts Degree at Granite State College.  Melissa was 
a para-educator for three years, took time off to raise her family and for the past three years has went back 
to a para-educators position in Nashua while she finished her degree. She has passed the Praxis exam and 
will be eligible for certification in June. 
 
In her time as a para-educator, Mrs. Levesque has worked as a classroom aid as well as one-on-one with 
students.  The pre-school is a required program mixing students with learning disabilities with students who 
are not identified in this educational environment.  Having the background in working with special needs 
is essential in finding success in this position.  This person will also act as the special education case 
manager for non-RISE students.  The speech-pathologist and the special education teacher she works with 
are very complimentary of Mrs. Levesque.  They focus their comments on her ability to build and keep 
productive and appropriate relationships with students, parents and staff.   
 
Mr. O’Connell interviewed candidates out of a pool of eleven along with one of the Kindergarten teachers.  
I recommend a motion to nominate Melissa Levesque for the position of Pre-school teacher at the 
Lyndeborough Central School at Bachelor’s step 1, a salary of $37,000.  The budgeted salary for this 
position was $67,500. 
 
   

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   
                       603-732-9227 
 

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.            Jennifer Burk 
 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services          Interim Business Administrator 
  









 

   

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 1 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 2 

  Tuesday, April 30, 2019 3 

Florence Rideout Elementary School-Library 4 

 5 
Present: Alex LoVerme, Miriam Lemire, Carol LeBlanc, Jonathan Vanderhoof, Mark Legere, Tiffany Cloutier-Cabral 6 
and John Clark  7 
Superintendent Bryan Lane, Principal Tim O’Connell, and Clerk Kristina Fowler 8 
 9 

I. CALL TO ORDER  10 
Vice Chairman LoVerme called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 11 
 12 

II. INTERVIEW BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR 13 
Ms. Lizabeth Baker was present and introductions were done. A question and answer period was completed. She 14 

provided information regarding her experience. She is currently working in Mascenic school district as a business 15 

administrator. She is a certified business administrator through the DOE in NH and MA. 16 

 17 
III. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 18 

Superintendent requested to add to the agenda 2 resignations and 1 appointment. Mr. Clark requested to add a 19 
discussion regarding social media accounts. 20 
 21 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Legere and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to accept the adjustments to the 22 
agenda. 23 
Voting: six ayes; one abstention from Mr. LoVerme, motion carried. 24 

 25 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 26 

Mr. LoVerme reviewed what is expected during public comment by reading what is posted on the board meeting 27 
agendas relating to public comment. 28 
 29 
  Ms. Lisa Post, Lyndeborough requested members speak up as it can be difficult to hear them.  She spoke regarding 30 
the $10,000 service awards for retiring teachers who served over 20 years and notes that major corporations do not 31 
give those funds and questions how we can do this with tax payer money and justify it.  Mr. LoVerme responded it is 32 
negotiated in their contract. Ms. Post commented maybe it needs to be renegotiated. Superintendent confirmed it is 33 
something that can be negotiated.  Mr. Adam Lavallee adds how many teachers are getting that and notes with the rate 34 
of turnover it will be zero.  Superintendent will provide him with the requested information.  Mr. Clark called “Point 35 
of Order” as according to policy, there cannot be any “back and forth”. 36 
 37 

V. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 38 
a. Reports 39 

i. Superintendent’s Report 40 
Superintendent provided an overview including spending the last couple of weeks working with Ms. Burk, Interim 41 
Business Administrator finalizing the end of year expenditures. He expressed we are not stopping people from going 42 
to workshops or changing the student experience but are watching things very closely. Once the 2019-20 budget is 43 
finalized, he will work with Ms. Burk so that it can be rolled out to the buildings. Work will soon begin on the 2020-44 
21 budget. Regarding hiring, interviews are ongoing for vacant positions.  Teacher and staff contracts for next year 45 
have gone out. A health teacher position was looked at but due to the candidate pool the elementary school schedule 46 
will be modified instead to incorporate this piece. May 4 is the Sustainability Fair at WLC, he will be transporting 47 
hikers to and from the hike with the district van.  He reviewed upcoming events.   48 
 49 
It was suggested for the 2020-21 budget, the notes field be filled out in all cases to obtain more clarity and to keep the 50 
CPI figures steady.  Superintendent responded he will do a 3 year look back with pieces around electricity, fuel and 51 
propane gas. He will look at consumption and what was budgeted; this will be the best indicator. The CPI will be 52 
taken into consideration but the district’s history will be the factor to solidify what is needed. 53 
 54 
It was noted the Superintendent will be discussing a shortfall but nothing has been cut. A question was raised if there 55 
is an interest to have members of the public sit in on employee interviews. Superintendent responded this will happen 56 



 

   

for the food service position. He did reach out to parents for the SPED position and will reach out again. A request for 57 
parents to be on the food service committee will go out this week. Superintendent confirmed teacher contracts are due 58 
back May 1 and currently there is only 1 not returned. Paraprofessionals will need to return theirs within 15 days. He 59 
will speak to anyone who has not returned a contract by the due dates. 60 

ii. Director of Student Support Services Report 61 
 Superintendent provided an overview of Ms. Moore’s report in her absence. The report is a description of what the 62 
process is for WLC students who are referred. This will be Ms. Moore’s final report to the Board.  Superintendent 63 
responded to a question regarding if students grow out of the RISE program. He confirmed there are students who 64 
matriculated out of the program. Principal O’Connell noted it is different for each student and the program tries to 65 
meet the needs of each student. As they get older they may require less support. Superintendent added it is always the 66 
goal to move the students into the least restrictive environment; the classroom. While they may still be accessing 67 
some areas in life skills (for example). He confirmed long-range planning is on their radar and discussions have 68 
started with the BCBA in regard to this. 69 
  70 

b. Letters/Information 71 
i. Concern Raised at School Board Meeting 72 

Superintendent spoke regarding at a board meeting, a citizen indicated a student had been trapped in the elevator at 73 
FRES (he believes the citizen reported the situation as it was reported to him). He wanted to have this clarified.  74 
Principal O’Connell clarified he was not in the building when it occurred, but did follow up and what occurred was 75 
very different than what was reported to the Board. Students are not allowed to ride the elevator unless accompanied 76 
by an adult. There was a student with an adult, who reached out and pushed all the buttons on the control panel of the 77 
elevator including the emergency call button which calls out to MACBASE (Milford Area Communications). 78 
MACBASE received a message the emergency button had been pushed. They tried to call the main office but were 79 
unable to get through. They sent an officer to investigate. When the student (who usually uses the elevator with an 80 
adult) got in the elevator and went down, the doors opened at the same time the police arrived and the child got out, 81 
was upset and apologized. There was no student trapped at any point in the elevator that day. There have been 3 82 
incidents where the elevator was stuck due to system malfunction and dust stuck in the door track. Protocol is to call 83 
the police/fire department; they have to open the doors as they have made it clear we are not authorized to do so 84 
(although he has the ability to).  Superintendent added it was reported to him the police tried to call and didn’t get 85 
through. Phone records were checked and there was no call that came through. Principal O’Connell informed him it 86 
was MACBASE who tried to call. Superintendent explains Mitel didn’t have a record of the call; the 654 number goes 87 
to Mitel through an interface; he believes the interface did not work. TDS will not provide calling information without 88 
a subpoena.  Emergency facilities in Wilton and Lyndeborough have been provided the direct dial 732 numbers.  Mr. 89 
Vanderhoof noted this was brought to the Board previously but no change was made to use the 732 numbers.  He is 90 
requesting an update on that process and would like it as an agenda item.  Mr. Clark questioned if there is any signed 91 
service agreement which guarantees a level of service. Superintendent to check on this. A question was raised 92 
regarding chain of command when the Principal is out of the building. Principal O’Connell confirmed Ms. Jo Anne 93 
Dufour, School Counselor serves as the point person for any immediate issues; she was made aware of the situation. 94 
This happened at the end of the day during dismissal; there was not a lot of time to follow up and it came to the Board 95 
that same night.  Principal O’Connell was not present during the discussion and believes he could have provided 96 
information that would have helped diffuse the situation.  Discussion followed regarding the instructions from 97 
emergency personnel to not open the elevator doors.  Discussion was had regarding the calls not coming through. 98 
Superintendent questioned if the Board wants to keep the 654 main phone numbers or change over to the 732 main 99 
phone numbers.  Discussion was had regarding “landline vs. internet” and it was noted this may be something to ask a 100 
new IT Director to look into due to the complexity. It was suggested to have a “red (landline) phone” in each building 101 
designated for emergencies.  Superintendent confirmed the buildings do have access to landlines in case of an 102 
emergency. It was confirmed the fax lines can be used if the main number is not working. All the buildings have this 103 
available. Ms. Cloutier-Cabral suggests having the “red phones” as it draws attention and the ringer can be louder to 104 
get everyone’s attention. 105 

ii. Salary Savings 106 
Superintendent provided information as requested on what the salary savings would be with retiring staff. He 107 

provided a document showing the estimated total savings as $77,993. Service awards are also listed. Service awards 108 

and “sick day buy back” are given to teachers as part of their collective bargaining agreement. He has also listed the 109 

FICA and NHRS associated with these costs (total expense $52,248) and brings the net savings to the district as 110 

$25,745. The savings is seen the following year not in the year they retire and the $52,248 is paid out after July 1. 111 

iii. Line Item Budget 2019-2020 112 



 

   

Superintendent provided a line item budget for 2019-2020 as requested with the last column showing the difference 113 
from the SAU budget and the approved budget. He commented “if you move forward with this, budget transfers will 114 
be done if needed”.  No objection heard.  115 
 116 
A question was raised as to how many students are enrolled in the after school program through the Nashua Adult 117 
Learning Center. Principal O’Connell confirmed 10 are enrolled with typically 8-9 students on any given day and 7 of 118 
the 10 are kindergarten students.  Superintendent confirmed there is no cost to us to have this program available. 119 
 120 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 121 
i. Treasurer’s Report-October 2018-December 2018 122 

A MOTION was made by Ms. LeBlanc and SECONDED by Mr. Legere to approve the treasurer’s reports. 123 
Voting: six ayes; one abstention from Mr. LoVerme, motion carried. 124 
 125 

VII. FUND BALANCE 126 
 Superintendent provided documents describing the expense issues. The fund balance as of today is about the same at 127 
$43,814 in the negative. Listed are unanticipated expenses which include ABA Therapists for the RISE program, 128 
Long-term substitutes, out of district tuition and decrease in revenue from food service; totaling $247,412.45. He 129 
confirms the funds from the special education capital reserve are included in this and we originally asked for an 130 
additional $80,000 which would even it out. He will have a better idea in the coming weeks. There is $11,000 131 
encumbered for fuel and if this is not needed it will be released. The boilers have not been shut down yet due to a cold 132 
snap, there is an offset of $20,000 for the business administrator and technology director who are not here. There is 133 
$345 in software that will be closed out due to receiving a better price. He will ask if the additional funds from the 134 
special education capital reserve are needed. The funds left in the supply accounts we do not anticipate needing but 135 
will leave in case. He spoke with food service personnel; there is a decline in participation rates and is still trying to 136 
get the information if it is for FRES and WLC both or not. It didn’t appear to him there was a reduction in food 137 
supplies and is not sure why this was not looked into. There is $15,000 in uncollected debt from students who have 138 
not paid. Principals have been making calls and parents have been contacted; they will continue to work the process. 139 
If more money is collected, it supplements the fund balance in a positive direction. He gave an overview of the 140 
process they use to attempt to collect payment. He noted the law changed about 4 years ago and you cannot deny a 141 
student a lunch and they can continue to build a debt. You can take them to small claims court, it was decided not to 142 
go this route prior but that can be looked into again. There are about 10 families owing more than $500 to the district. 143 
He confirmed some of the $15,000 is rolled over from the prior year.  He confirmed regarding the special education 144 
capital reserve, the balance is approximately $125,000. He confirmed for the ABA Therapists, the $116,480 is in next 145 
year’s budget. It was noted there is $157,561 in special education costs not in next year’s accounts and additional 146 
funds ($80,000) may be requested for withdrawal from the capital reserve this year; this is concerning. Superintendent 147 
noted there is a possibility of a student who is receiving services who may not continue although an additional student 148 
moved in today. Discussion was had regarding the unpaid balances in food service. It was agreed to have the food 149 
service committee add this to their agenda.  150 
 151 

VIII. ACTION ITEMS 152 
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 153 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to approve the minutes of April 4, 2019 154 
as amended. 155 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 156 
 157 

b. Technology Bid 158 
Superintendent reported he is waiting for information which was requested by a board member.  Once he has this he 159 
will bring this back.  160 

c. Policies 161 
i. BEDH-Public Participation at Board Meetings-1st Read 162 

Superintendent reported this is the 1st reading for this policy. It was brought forward as written. Two typos will be 163 
fixed. This policy will be brought back for a 2nd reading.  164 

ii. BEDB-Agenda Preparation and Dissemination-1st Read 165 
Superintendent reported this is the 1st reading for this policy. No changes were made and this policy will be brought 166 

back for a 2nd reading. 167 

iii. DFA-Investment-Annual Re-Adoption 168 



 

   

Superintendent reported this is a 2nd reading and an annual re-adoption of this policy.  169 
 170 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Legere and SECONDED by Mr. Vanderhoof to re-adopt DFA-Investment Policy. 171 
Voting: six ayes; one abstention from Mr. LoVerme, motion carried. 172 
  173 

IX. COMMITTEE REPORTS 174 
i.  Budget Liaison 175 

Mr. Vanderhoof reported Ms. Jennifer Bernet was elected secretary, Ms. Leslie Browne was elected chair and Mr. Bill 176 
Ryan was elected vice chair. The committee had questions about training and if they had access to NHSBA offerings.  177 
School Board Chairman, Ballou was contacted to look into this and training for the school board and budget 178 
committee together. Mr. Vanderhoof reports the committee had a general sense of wanting everyone to have a 179 
consensus of who is in charge and responsible for what. A question was raised whether the school board wants to 180 
have representation from the budget committee on all committees such as the new one formed for food service. Mr. 181 
Vanderhoof suggests an agenda item to discuss and figure out what the processes should be. He notes over the last 182 
couple years he was going off what he was told and “some of that seems a little off”. He suggests a joint meeting with 183 
the budget committee but doesn’t need to be the next meeting. The budget committee will meet on 5/21/19 and Mr. 184 
Vanderhoof can ask if they would like to have a joint meeting to discuss the “ins and outs”.  He noted a slide show 185 
about how things are supposed to work regarding the basics of school budgeting is available from NHSBA.  Mr. 186 
LoVerme agrees with all the new members on both boards it would be a good idea. 187 

ii. Policy Committee  188 
Mr. Clark reported the committee focused on trying to get policies BEHD and BEDB regarding board meeting ready 189 

for a 1st read.  Specifically allowing public comment at the beginning and focus on agenda items. The committee spent 190 

some time discussing communications and potentially television and archiving meetings; the consensus was to bring it 191 

back before putting it into a policy. 192 

 193 

 SOCIAL MEDIA DISCUSSION 194 

Mr. Clark spoke of YouTube and Facebook allowing streaming and archiving of events at a high level and at no cost 195 

which is something we can potentially look into.  He reports a school board is required to archive any recording per 196 

state law. This is one concept to consider and we would need a policy including what happens when someone no 197 

longer adheres to policy, what happens to recording, some districts have it edited, what is the official record, the 198 

minutes or the recording. Another area for consideration is social media accounts. Dates and locations for board 199 

meetings and links to our website is a way for information to be provided and there is a way for information to come 200 

in which would be considered board correspondence. There is also the option to have information that comes in be 201 

discarded. These are some options to broadcast our reach at a very low cost. If you televise it, you need the 202 

equipment. It was suggested a demo be provided and he can work with the Superintendent on this.  A brief discussion 203 

was had regarding possible scenarios with video recordings and the possibility of having students get involved from 204 

the media club. There was also a brief discussion about the concerns of the video being tampered with and the level of 205 

ownership and validity. It was noted any member of the public can record the meeting without having to ask for 206 

permission. Discussion was had that it seems to be a lot of work that would be created and a significant cost; how 207 

many would utilize this. There has not been a lot of discussion from the public with a desire or drive for this although 208 

it doesn’t mean it is not there. No objection was heard to have a presentation given to the strategic planning 209 

committee by Mr. Clark.   210 

iii. Negotiations Committee 211 
 Mr. LoVerme reported the committee met, this is his 3rd time on the negotiations committee and the 1st time they 212 
have met this early in the year.  They went over most of the CBA but not all.  They will bring information to the 213 
school board and seek input as they get further along. A question was raised since most of the discussions at the 214 
school board level surrounding negotiations are in non-public, does the committee do any updates in public format. 215 
Superintendent confirmed normally the school board would have their conversation in non-public so if there is 216 
language in the contract school board members have concerns they can bring those to the committee then the 217 
committee has a charge to move forward with.  Mr. Vanderhoof noted, we can request a non-public session if needed 218 
during the summary. 219 
  220 

X. RESIGNATIONS / APPOINTMENTS / LEAVES 221 



 

   

a. Appointments 222 
Superintendent recommended appointments for the following teachers and staff. He confirmed he hires the best 223 
candidate; it’s not based on the salary. He confirmed there is opportunity for summer PD for new teachers as well as a 224 
mentor program.    225 

i. Margaret Dwyer-English Teacher WLC 226 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to accept the recommendation and appoint 227 
Ms. Margaret Dwyer, HS English teacher. 228 
Voting: six ayes; one abstention from Mr. LoVerme, motion carried. 229 
 230 

ii. Andrea Petrone-Elementary Teacher FRES 231 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to accept the recommendation and 232 
appoint Ms. Andrea Petrone, elementary teacher (3rd grade). 233 
Voting: six ayes; one abstention from Mr. LoVerme, motion carried. 234 
 235 

iii. Emily Hall-Art Teacher WLC 236 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to accept the recommendation and 237 
appoint Ms. Emily Hall, WLC art teacher. 238 
Voting: six ayes; one abstention from Mr. LoVerme, motion carried. 239 

 240 
iv. Allison Blondin-MS Math Teacher WLC 241 

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to accept the recommendation and 242 
appoint Ms. Allison Blondin, WLC MS math teacher. 243 
Voting: six ayes; one abstention from Mr. LoVerme, motion carried. 244 
 245 

v. Lizabeth Baker-Business Administrator 246 
A discussion was had regarding the salary for this position, the recommended salary for this candidate is more than 247 
was budgeted and only 1 out of 12 candidates was brought to the Board. Superintendent reviewed that this position 248 
requires background and knowledge in schools plus DOE certification and this is not a high salary for this position.  249 
He confirmed the position for a part-time person in the business office would still be needed.  Mr. Vanderhoof raised 250 
concern as he believes we could get someone in this position for less money. “To start someone out at $87,000, 251 
which is over our budgeted salary and there is no step/scale for this specific position, to go over budget is not looking 252 
out for the tax payers in the community and we don’t get opportunities like this.  I think it’s a really bad idea, its just 253 
economics, you can get someone in here at a lower salary who will do a good job.”  Mr. Clark questioned if the 254 
salary range for all 12 candidates was roughly even or was there a wide variance. Mr. Vanderhoof had a document to 255 
show the salaries of all the business administrators in NH.  It was noted the salaries vary, different sized districts and 256 
some part time positions.  Superintendent responded this is not a high salary for this position, you need to be certified 257 
by the DOE, have the background and knowledge around schools. He added the other candidates were making more 258 
than we budgeted for and in speaking to candidates who were qualified this was about as low as people would go. 259 
Mr. Clark questioned if there is data backing up that people would do this job for a lower rate; is there is data 260 
showing comparable rates to our districts and noted that this needs data to back it up otherwise it is just an opinion. 261 
Ms. Lemire commented she think it is splitting hairs. Discussion continued briefly. Mr. Vanderhoof commented “we 262 
had 12 people apply, I only got to talk to one.” 263 
 264 

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to accept the recommendation and 265 
appoint Ms. Lizabeth Baker, Business Administrator. 266 
Voting: five ayes; one nay from Mr. Vanderhoof, one abstention from Mr. LoVerme, motion carried. 267 
 268 

vi. Megan Sass-School Psychologist SAU 269 
Superintendent spoke regarding the need for a school psychologist on staff; we currently contract out for these 270 
services at 35 hours a week. He would like to add this position. Some of the duties performed are individual work 271 
with students and testing for SPED through the IEP process. They must be licensed and have background knowledge. 272 
The need for services has increased and at times the psychologist is working over 40 hours per week. We’ve had over 273 
40 referrals this year. This position wouldn’t be in a CBA and would be school year.  It’s a service we are paying for 274 
anyway but would allow us some flexibility during the year as a salaried position. Currently as a contracted service 275 
provider the psychologist can negotiate their contract each year and also contract with other school districts. Forty 276 
hours a week would be the normal schedule but if some weeks require more as a salaried position it would not be at 277 
additional cost.  Financially it evens out but for the employee being part of NHRS allows them to do some things 278 



 

   

long-term and those costs are already imbedded. Discussion was had including if it is enough of a financial savings to 279 
add a position if we can get the same services, is everyone getting the services they need now, there would be no other 280 
school districts the psychologist would be working with (just ours), there is no anticipated savings at this time, it is 281 
cost effective as the needs increase, having someone on staff would be a benefit. 282 
 283 
Superintendent informed the Board we are approaching the point we may need to consider adding a 4th first grade 284 
teacher. Principal O’Connell informed the Board we have 37 registrations at this time. 285 
 286 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to add a school psychologist staff position. 287 
Voting: five ayes; one nay from Mr. Vanderhoof, one abstention from Mr. LoVerme, motion carried. 288 
 289 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to accept the recommendation and 290 
nominate/appoint Ms. Megan Sass, School Psychologist. 291 
Voting: five ayes; one nay from Mr. Vanderhoof, one abstention from Mr. LoVerme, motion carried. 292 
 293 
Mr. Vanderhoof voiced concern that a position was created, filled and advertising was not done. 294 
 295 

 Karis Roper-MS Science Teacher WLC 296 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to accept the recommendation and 297 
appoint Ms. Karis Roper, WLC MS science teacher. 298 
Voting: six ayes; one abstention from Mr. LoVerme, motion carried. 299 
 300 

b. Resignations 301 
i. Kimberly Plourde-Preschool Teacher LCS 302 
 Kathy Lefeber-School Nurse WLC 303 
 Jennifer Natusch-MS English Teacher WLC 304 

Superintendent reported 3 resignations, 2 teachers, 1 school nurse (2 are moving).  No motion is needed. 305 
 306 

XI. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 307 
Ms. Lemire questioned when the school board workshop would be. Superintendent responded the 2nd meeting in May 308 
(28th) the MS teachers will present their challenge options, if the Board wanted to include this it would be appropriate 309 
on the same day. 310 
 311 
Mr. Clark commented that Chairman Ballou was interested in adding an agenda item “agenda building” to the next 312 
meeting; it would be nice to add this to the 14th.  313 
 314 
Mr. Vanderhoof requested clarity on public participation on interviews and committees as soon as possible. 315 
 316 

XII. PUBLIC COMMENTS 317 
Mr. Adam Lavallee questioned if the appointed business administrator is going to be capable of giving the type of 318 
detail the budget committee wants. He spoke regarding the “elevator and phone thing”; it was not clear. “The problem 319 
was not a big problem but sounds like it’s worse.”  He thinks the Mitel contract would have something to make sure 320 
the calls get through or you should have been told emergency numbers wouldn’t get through. Regarding the public 321 
comment and sticking to the agenda, it is his opinion it’s a bad idea to keep people from speaking and if you try to 322 
silence people you are hiding something. He further states “I would look at what a defamatory remark is because you 323 
don’t want to silence people from making legitimate complaints; these questions still need to be answered. If the 324 
complaint is about the Superintendent the Board is the overseer. It’s not defamatory if it’s a legitimate concern”. Mr. 325 
LoVerme responded, when it has to do with the person’s character it needs to be done in non-public. Mr. Lavallee 326 
states “when I asked, could this be true I was told it went against a person’s character, I am fully within my rights and 327 
the information came to us, the truth is we have a right to know by your only employee if its true or not”. He suggests 328 
researching what is a defamatory remark. 329 
 330 
Ms. Susan Ciatto raised concern if the public can only comment on agenda items and if, as she has experienced, when 331 
she emails the Board, they do not email back; how does she ask how her concern is being addressed. Mr. LoVerme 332 
responded, you can email the Superintendent to get it put on the agenda; if it has to do with the Superintendent you 333 
can email the Board.  She asks her concern be placed on the agenda. She suggested the process be put on the website 334 



 

   

how to get topics discussed. She will send an email to have it placed on the agenda. She notes she did not receive an 335 
email regarding the 732 numbers and has heard an email was sent to parents on two separate occasions. She spoke 336 
regarding having the board meetings videotaped and comments 6 more people watching is a good thing. As a PTO 337 
member, she would be happy to help get the word out. She believes people would want to watch at home.  Mr. Clark 338 
spoke regarding the complaint process that there is a 3 tier process similar to a corporate structure, 1st is the teacher, 339 
then principal, Superintendent and then the school board and lastly the DOE. Ms. Ciatto finds the policy is different 340 
depending on who it is related to. Mr. Clark confirmed part of the policy committee’s job is to streamline the process 341 
If there is a concern about a complaint not being addressed it moves up the process. She requests procedures be clear. 342 
Mr. Clark responds there is discussion in creating some sort of pamphlet or cheat sheet of what to expect but it’s just a 343 
discussion; the hope is to increase communication abilities. 344 
 345 
Ms. Laura Gifford spoke noting if you want to be transparent, by prohibiting people to speak is strangling or gagging.  346 
She notes “as a school board, consider that usually people come to hear or do a little dialog or have some sort of input 347 
and sometimes they can’t get on the agenda or want to bring information as sometimes things don’t get to you when 348 
they should.  349 
 350 
Mr. Lavallee questioned if the school board was aware of Mr. Dailey’s email he forwarded back to them. “Mr. Ballou 351 
and Mr. Dailey were only ones on the reply and his response did not follow guidelines of KEB and no one realizes”. 352 
He does not believe anyone knew we were on step 1 until he spelled it out. His lawyers told him “they can do stuff 353 
like this with the Department of Education” and if he keeps getting no answers… He noted there is no amount of 354 
money he will spend for the safety and education of his kids. 355 
 356 
Ms. Lisa Post spoke indicating she thinks utilizing Facebook is great. She says if needed, it can be filed on Facebook; 357 
it doesn’t have to be official. The town already does this and doing it with a private person is great for transparency. 358 
She comments there is a shortfall this year and you are employing people above salary and hiring two teachers and a 359 
gym teacher at a higher salary than a science teacher. “If we need to spend our money somewhere it is in science and 360 
English”. Regarding the deficit for food service, since 2014, nothing has ever been done. There are a lot of schools 361 
and PTO’s that are raising funds to cover this through fund raisers.  She suggests the Board along with the PTO reach 362 
out to help those students who cannot afford it.  Ms. Ciatto questioned how is doing a fundraiser different than raising 363 
it through taxation? Mr. Lavallee responded it is voluntary. Ms. Post asks the Board to be cognizant of all ends as 364 
some cannot afford their taxes now.  365 
 366 
Mr. Lavallee questioned if people would pay a little more for better food. Restaurants are in the market to make 367 
money and is there a way to quantify that in a town this small. Mr. LoVerme responded, the food service committee 368 
will look at the whole lunch program at FRES and WLC once the committee is formed.  Superintendent confirmed the 369 
committee should be formed in a week. 370 
 371 

XIII. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) 372 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to enter Non-Public Session to 373 
discuss personnel matters RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) at 9:25pm. 374 
Voting: all aye via roll call vote; motion carried unanimously. 375 

 376 

MOTION to hear resident complaint in non-public with council by Mr. Legere and SECONDED by Mr. Clark. 377 
Voting: four ayes; two nays by Mr. Vanderhoof and Ms. Lemire and one abstention from Mr. LoVerme. motion 378 
carried.   379 
 380 
A non-public session to be scheduled for next meeting regarding personnel matters. 381 
 382 

 A MOTION was made by Mr. Legere and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to exit Non-Public Session 383 

at 10:39pm. 384 

Voting: six ayes via roll call vote; one abstention from Mr. LoVerme motion carried. 385 

 386 

  RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION 387 
The Board entered public session at 10:39pm.    388 
 389 



 

   

A MOTION was made by Mr. Legere and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to seal the minutes of the non-public 390 

session. 391 

Voting: six ayes; one nay from Mr. Vanderhoof motion carried. 392 

 393 
XIV. ADJOURNMENT 394 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Legere and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to adjourn the Board meeting at 395 
10:39pm. 396 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 397 
 398 
Respectfully submitted, 399 
Kristina Fowler 400 
  401 



 

   

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 1 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 2 

Tuesday, May 14, 2019 3 

Lyndeborough Central School-Multipurpose Room 4 

 6:30 p.m. 5 
 6 
Present: Matt Ballou, Miriam Lemire, Joyce Fisk, Carol LeBlanc, Jonathan Vanderhoof, Mark Legere, Alex 7 
LoVerme, Tiffany Cloutier-Cabral and John Clark (arrived 6:32pm) 8 
 9 
Superintendent Bryan Lane, Principal Tim O’Connell, Curriculum Coordinator Julie Heon, and Clerk Kristina 10 
Fowler 11 
 12 

I. CALL TO ORDER  13 
Chairman Ballou called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 14 
 15 

II. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) 16 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to enter Non-Public Session to discuss 17 

personnel matters RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) at 6:30pm. 18 

Voting: all aye via roll call vote; motion carried unanimously. 19 

 20 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to exit the non-public session at 6:42pm. 21 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 22 
 23 

RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION 24 
The Board entered public session at 6:42pm.    25 
 26 
 A MOTION was made to seal the non-public session minutes by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Mr. LoVerme. 27 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 28 
 29 

III. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 30 
Superintendent requested to add additional nominations. 31 
 32 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire to accept the adjustments to the agenda. 33 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 34 
 35 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 36 
Ms. Karen Walker, Wilton spoke of an email she sent requesting to hear about the “ConVal suit” and to have this on 37 
the agenda. She noted she didn’t see it made the agenda and questions if there will be opportunity to ask questions 38 
and wonders why it did not get on the agenda. She was informed this is addressed in the Superintendent’s Report and 39 
he will speak to it. 40 
 41 

V. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 42 
a. Reports 43 

i. Superintendent’s Report 44 
 Superintendent reported working with Ms. Burk; a document has been providing regarding finances which will be 45 

discussed later. Interviews are ongoing for multiple positions; Director of Student Support Services and Technology 46 

Director will be addressed during non-public. Positions that remain to be filled are WLC school nurse (interviews 47 

almost complete), special education case manager at FRES, preschool teacher and food service director. In response 48 

to a concern regarding staff morale, he has reached out to the teacher and support staff associations to set up 49 

meetings however as they change over in officers the request will be brought forward. He hopes to be sure they get 50 

the information they need and be proactive to find positive ways to move forward. He spoke regarding the adequacy 51 

lawsuit and as it stands currently it is going through a process and we would not be able to get involved but he will 52 

hear back after May 17 and have additional information if the district can join. He spoke to Superintendent Saunders 53 

at ConVal. At this point it is a matter of the process they are in, there is a time you can join and if not, you have to 54 



 

   

wait for the next step. He attended the Sustainability Fair and was pleased to be the chauffer to bring hikers back to 55 

the school from Garwin Falls.  A question was raised regarding meeting with the associations if this is something the 56 

Negotiations Committee should look at. Superintendent responded there is a possibility to do it that way but this is a 57 

formal protocol to set up monthly meetings with them. A question was raised what happens when Superintendent 58 

Lane has completed his contract, will this continue. Superintendent responded it it’s a protocol that exits it will 59 

continue. Chairman Ballou commented regarding the ConVal lawsuit, that ConVal did a presentation at Mascenic 60 

and he understands there will be a cost involved. Superintendent responded depending on where you come into the 61 

process will depend on the cost. He will obtain additional information and report back. A question was raised, if 62 

ConVal wins will it cost more to the towns or will they get money back? Superintendent responded the question is if 63 

the courts determine the current formula is inadequate; over the past 20 years they have been trying to readjust the 64 

formula and it has not had the effect that was desired. The issue at this point is, is there another revenue stream, and 65 

if not I don’t know what would happen. The lawsuit would not say this is the result, it would say it is not OK and 66 

they have to come up with a result.  67 

ii. Principals’ Reports  68 
Superintendent provided an overview in Principal Bagley’s absence. The Sustainability Fair was on May 4. Mr. 69 
Finch, physical education teacher was inducted into the Westfield State Movement of Science Hall of Fame.  The 70 
middle school teachers will come to the next meeting to present their challenge options program. A student applied 71 
and was accepted to the BAE Focus Program for a spring internship. The “Backyard BBQ” is May 17. 72 
 73 
Principal O’Connell provided an overview of his report which included parent kindergarten orientation at LCS on 74 
May 2. This is for parents of incoming kindergarten students to learn a little of what to expect. He thanked staff who 75 
spent the extra time to do this.  Students in Grades 3,4, and 5 completed the NHSAS mathematics assessment.  Time 76 
will be spent analyzing the data. Staff appreciation week was great; the PTO and parents put this on for the staff and 77 
food was provided which everyone enjoyed. May 22 is the Celebration of Learning at FRES. Some highlights 78 
include an art show, 5th grade students will present the Hallway of History Colonial America Timeline, 4th grade 79 
students will be “wheeling and dealing” during the Economics Fair. May 30 is the spring concert “Juke Box Time 80 
Machine”, lots of field trips are happening.  May 17 we will be honoring those who help the school at the “Thanks a 81 
Bunch Brunch”. Working closely with the public library, the youth librarian puts on a great summer reading program 82 
and there will be an assembly for this. Kindergarten step up day is June 4, kindergarten welcome day for incoming 83 
students is May 24 and the 5th grade students will have step up day on June 5 where they will be touring WLC and 84 
meeting with their teachers. 85 

iii. Curriculum Coordinator’s Report 86 
Dr. Heon reported she hoped to have news regarding the 3 completive grants she applied for but does not at this time.  87 
Several teachers from each of the schools have volunteered to do PD over the summer. She commends them for 88 
giving up their time and that they are willing to do this. FRES teachers will attend science training and WLC science 89 
teachers have agreed to work with our consultant for 2 more days and work on the units.  She will meet with newly 90 
hired teachers in June and on the first day of orientation as well. A book about the first days of school will be 91 
provided and it also includes talks about curriculum and strong instructional practice. She reports working on our 92 
new curriculum for digital learning and computer science. Digital learning is the new term for “computers” and 93 
computer science refers to “coding”.    94 

b. Letters/Information 95 
i. Enrollment 96 

Superintendent reported our enrollment throughout the school year maintains reasonably stable (district total for 97 
April was 554).   There are currently 36 incoming kindergarten students at this time per Principal O’Connell. 98 
Superintendent confirmed we are at 55 students for 1st grade and at 60 we would look to add another teacher. 99 
 100 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 101 
There was no consent agenda to report. 102 
 103 

VII. WORKSHOP PLANNING 104 
Superintendent reported previously the school board workshop day dealt with board goals and objectives and worked 105 
on the format and objectives of the Strategic Planning Committee. It has been brought up to have a joint session over 106 
the summer with the budget committee and NHSBA regarding roles and responsibilities; this can be discussed more 107 
and defined. The MS teachers will also present the Challenge Options plan. Chairman Ballou spoke regarding this 108 
workshop being (May 28) for school board members only and the Budget Committee would attend in the summer 109 



 

   

(probably August) for a joint meeting to discuss budget planning, roles and responsibilities. There may need to be 110 
two meetings. NHSBA would run the meeting onsite for us.  The first two weeks of August is the earliest NHSBA 111 
can do it. Ms. LeBlanc questioned if the Strategic Planning Committee goals would be addressed during the May 112 
meeting. Superintendent responded if the Board wants to include this, yes.  Mr. Clark added that he would like to 113 
show the live recording piece and social media options; ok per Chairman Ballou.  Mr. Vanderhoof would inform the 114 
Budget Committee. 115 
 116 

VIII. SUBCOMMITTEES 117 
 Superintendent reported one of the questions that has come up is in regard to the Wellness Committee. This 118 
committee was born from our insurance carrier for wellness of staff not necessarily for students.  At one point a 119 
cookbook for staff was developed. The committee works to provide wellness awareness and get the word out to staff. 120 
Mr. Clark suggested we could perhaps talk more about the roles after the workshop.  Mr. Vanderhoof conveyed that 121 
the Budget Committee wanted to know if the School Board wanted them on other committees like the Food Service 122 
Committee. Mr. Clark suggested the workshop would be a good time to talk about this. It was noted previously it 123 
was agreed to have one Budget Committee member represent on the Food Service Committee.   124 
 125 

IX. ACTION ITEMS 126 
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 127 

Mr. Vanderhoof requested additional details of the discussion that was had regarding the recommendation for 128 
nomination of the position of the business administrator. Ms. Fowler to review notes to determine if any additional 129 
documentation can be added and bring back to the next meeting. 130 
 131 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Mr. Clark to table the approval of the minutes for 132 
April 30, 2019. 133 
Voting: eight ayes; one abstention from Chairman Ballou, motion carried. 134 
 135 

b. Request Funds from Educating Educationally Disabled Children Capital Reserve 136 
Superintendent reported at an earlier meeting it was requested to release $125,000 ($80,000 was approved) from the 137 
capital reserve and it was decided to wait and see if there was a need for an additional request. He has been working 138 
with Ms. Burk to determine the remaining expenditures for this year. It was determined there were some positions 139 
that were not encumbered for co-curricular athletics and non-athletics. Also, s student has moved in during the past 140 
few weeks who needs services. There was a miscalculation between special education and the business administrator 141 
for out of district expenditures. It appears there was a miscalculation of funds for us to cover this. We are anticipating 142 
a negative $46,000. He requests $50,000 from the Educating Educationally Disabled Children Capital Reserve Fund. 143 
The current balance in the capital reserve fund is $141,046 (this includes interest) and if the $50,000 is approved for 144 
withdrawal the balance would be $91,046.  In looking at next year’s expenditures, we have a salary savings of about 145 
$45,000-$50,000. There is a student who will no longer be in the district next year; offsetting cost of the new student 146 
with budgeted cost is $40,000.  There has been almost $200,000 in unplanned cost between maternity leaves and 147 
special education costs. The only way to avoid withdrawing from the capital reserve is to have a buffer of some kind 148 
put into the budget, that is what the fund balance was and we have exhausted the buffer.  149 
 150 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Mr. LoVerme to recommend the release of $50,000 from 151 
the Educating Educationally Disabled Children Capital Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding unanticipated costs 152 
for special education services in the 2018-2019 school year. *  153 
 154 
A question was raised if there is any process to make sure this doesn’t happen again. Superintendent explained the 155 
reason we have this capital reserve fund is in case something like this happens. Some districts put in buffers for 156 
health insurance for example, things we cannot determine ahead of time. This fund exists for this reason and we have 157 
not had to do this before he added. He suggests putting in a warrant article next time. A question was raised 158 
regarding what process has been put into place regarding the miscalculation. Superintendent explained a student 159 
came in mid-year and a figure from a prior student was used without discussing it with the facility; this will not 160 
happen again. A question was raised if 3 teachers out a day is conservative. Principal O’Connell reports that’s a little 161 
high. Chairman Ballou believes this is conservative. Superintendent is hoping it is less and noted if teachers do not 162 
use their personal days, they are paid $300.  Concern was raised that the capital reserve would be low at $91,000. 163 
Question was raised if the $250,000 is a “safe cap” or should the cap be higher for this fund especially given one 164 
student could cost $150,000 on top of what we are spending. This was briefly discussed. The fund has been in place 165 
since 2003 and not used prior to this year. Superintendent agrees it is a low number although it worked for many 166 



 

   

years. It was noted if this was known in October there would have been time to add a warrant article. Superintendent 167 
will be working with the new business administrator and special education director to know the costs starting day 1 168 
and so on and we can find issues as they come up. He doesn’t disagree that it is lower than he would like but if we do 169 
not do this we will not be able to manage the district.   170 
 171 
*Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 172 
 173 

c. Policies 174 
i. BEDH-Public Participation at Board Meetings-2nd Reading 175 

A suggestion was made to discuss the policy but send it back to the Policy Committee. It was noted there was public 176 
displeasure around public comment only covering agenda items rather than items of concern. In the NHSBA 177 
template there is an option to allow public concern to be included and Mr. Clark believes it should be discussed. The 178 
current format has gone off policy (we do something like an open meeting or back and forth). Whatever we do, it 179 
needs to be evenly handed across the board. Discussion was had regarding adding language to include this as it has 180 
always been allowed in the past, and at times this is how the Board is informed of things. It was suggested no detail 181 
response should be expected (as at times this is the first the Board is hearing of the matter) and perhaps it be added to 182 
the agenda for a future meeting. It was also noted if negative comments are made toward a person, it should be 183 
squashed as such discussion should be done in non-public; the person would be directed to the complaint policy.  A 184 
concern was raised that at times response is given to the public by one board member and not all may agree with the 185 
response (it has not been discussed by the Board). Non-board members, such as administration, have been asked 186 
direct questions in this forum and this is not covered in the policy, it was questioned if this is something that should 187 
be tolerated. The public should directly address the Board and not the public; private conversations should be taken 188 
out of the room. A suggestion was made to add an agenda item, Board Response to Public Comment if there is not to 189 
be any response and it can be discussed and followed up on at a future meeting. Chairman Ballou noted the answer is 190 
we will discuss it and then respond. A question was raised if the Board can have a uniform answer to the public when 191 
they request agenda items or bring things up. It was suggested this policy be returned to the Policy Committee to 192 
incorporate suggestions. 193 

ii. BEDB-Agenda Preparation and Dissemination-2nd Reading 194 
 It was suggested the agenda should come to members a day or two prior to the board packet going out to allow 195 
members to add items to the agenda. A question was raised if agenda items from staff, citizens and students shall be 196 
at the discretion of the Chairman. It was noted that there is merit in having this role delegated to the Chairman as 197 
someone needs to have this responsibility.  A suggestion was made to perhaps add language regarding addressing 198 
something that is asked outside of a board meeting. It was noted the way it is written any suggestion goes through the 199 
Chairman and he decides and then the request is sent to the Superintendent to have it added. A motion can be made 200 
to table an agenda item if it is added and not all want to discuss it. Superintendent noted sometimes agenda items 201 
may be answered and responded to and may not need to be an agenda item. We give the agenda to the Chairman and 202 
Vice Chairman the Friday or Monday prior to the packet going out to allow for any adjustments. The language as it 203 
exists takes care of board members, staff, students; the Chairman may not feel it is appropriate at that time. There 204 
may not be time to gather the information or outside resources may be needed. If someone from the public asks for 205 
an agenda item the Chairman or myself need to respond to them and say we will do this, get the information and look 206 
to have it as a future agenda item. Mr. Legere noted if a board member asks for an agenda item it gets on the agenda 207 
and if the Board doesn’t want to discuss it, it can be tabled. If a request goes to the Chairman and it is denied, he 208 
would like to know this.  He added it would depend on the content if it is a public response. Superintendent 209 
suggested it could be part of his board report and would indicate it was brought forth by a citizen and this is a public 210 
document. It was suggested this be added to the policy. 211 
 212 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to send both policies BEDH-Public 213 
Participation at Board Meetings and BEDB-Agenda Preparation and Dissemination to the Policy Committee for 214 
modifications. 215 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 216 
 217 
Superintendent suggested at this time, because it has been brought up but not policy, he will begin this process of 218 
including information in his board report regarding public requests with the Board’s permission. No objection heard. 219 
   220 

X. COMMITTEE REPORTS 221 
Negotiations Committee will meet on May 20 at LCS. The Policy Committee needs to set a meeting date. The 222 
Budget Committee is meeting May 21 at WLC. 223 



 

   

 224 
XI. RESIGNATIONS / APPOINTMENTS / LEAVES 225 

a. Appointments 226 
i. Pending 227 

 Superintendent reviewed the recommended nominations.  228 
 229 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to accept the recommendation and 230 
appoint Mr. Malin Segal, physical education/health teacher at WLC. 231 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 232 
 233 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Mr. Vanderhoof to accept the recommendation and 234 
appoint Ms. Amy Clark Canty, MS English teacher at WLC. 235 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 236 
 237 

XII. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 238 
Mr. Vanderhoof commented he would be interested in discussing a policy around job postings, to address things such 239 
as a minimum posting time and creating a new position and having it filled immediately. He questioned the status of 240 
the school board group email. Response was that it is still being worked on and it progressed to the workshop with 241 
along with other things. 242 
 243 
Ms. LeBlanc questioned who the students were in the audience. Response was they are from WLC government class. 244 
 245 
Mr. Clark questioned receiving correspondence that was not on the agenda. Response was it will be discussed in non-246 
public. 247 
 248 
Mr. LoVerme commented the foundation for the dugout has not been poured they were told it would be done in 2 249 
weeks, he questioned the status. Response from Superintendent is he will find out and report back.  Mr. LoVerme 250 
questioned when the Food Service Committee will be formed. Superintendent will send Mr. LoVerme the list of 251 
members at this point and if he would like schedule a meeting we can move forward. 252 
 253 
Chairman Ballou commented that there is a lot of discussion regarding grades and performance of students and 254 
sometimes we don’t know the follow up of the students. He was informed one of our students was the Valedictorian 255 
at St. Michaels College and we’ve had students in the top 10 at Plymouth. He noted sometimes we focus on the 256 
negative but there is a lot of positive! 257 
 258 
Ms. Lemire commented that parking can be an issue at LCS with the kindergarten events that parents want to attend 259 
and questioned if there is a way to allow for more parking so that all parents can participate if they want. 260 
Superintendent responded he will have staff park by the store. 261 
 262 
Ms. Cloutier-Cabral commented she is impressed with the 2 newly appointed teachers and is looking forward to 263 
seeing what they will bring.  264 
 265 
Chairman Ballou informed the members he volunteered for the Backyard BBQ and it is kind of a tradition for the 266 
School Board to help out and if members can help, let Ms. Cloutier-Cabral know or Ms. Kristen Schwab. Ms. 267 
Cloutier-Cabral noted they will take help of any kind although pending the weather, there is a chance it will be 268 
cancelled or rescheduled.  269 
 270 

XIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS 271 
 Mr. Adam Lavallee spoke regarding the NHSBA joint workshop with the Budget Committee in August and 272 
questioned if it is smart to wait until August with all the committees they may or may not be a part of. Chairman 273 
Ballou responded, we will get back to you.  Mr. Lavallee questioned if he heard correctly that there was a 274 
miscalculation by the business administrator that caused a $40,000 shortage. Response was the information is all 275 
available in a document from the Superintendent and posted on the website (included board packet). Mr. Lavallee 276 
questioned if the costs for substitutes includes nursing subs as an unexpected cost (referring to another document in 277 
the board packet). Response from the Superintendent is there is a separate line for this.  Mr. Lavallee commented he 278 
believes Chairman Ballou is “basically a good guy and doesn’t think he would but he has the final say and power to 279 
be a dictator if he wanted to” (referring to policy discussion prior). Chairman Ballou responded he believes there will 280 



 

   

be further discussion and he is always thinking of the next Chairman; it will be on the agenda soon enough.  Mr. 281 
Lavallee spoke of being very happy that health education will be starting earlier and he thinks this will be more 282 
effective than vape detectors. 283 
 284 
Ms. Karen Walker, Wilton spoke of the adequacy lawsuit filed by ConVal noting it was filed in middle of March and 285 
it says $3,600 per student in each district that everyone more or less gets is willfully insufficient. Other districts have 286 
joined this suit. She reports based on the formula the state has, it is willfully insufficient.  ConVal says it should be 287 
over $10,000 and the court should find that is the amount for an adequate pupil education. It would be up to the state 288 
to do this and make up the difference between $3,600 and $10,000 and the localities would be up to the tax payers.  289 
She notes this is a very significant case as it is the first significant challenge on how the state comes up with the 290 
formula. She notes she was an attorney and it behooves the Board to look at this seriously and find out what the 291 
status is. It may be all the districts benefit. It seems to be, if we don’t join the suit that is ultimately successful we 292 
may not be able to make a claim. This is why ConVal started in March; they wanted a determination before April. 293 
She adds the Judge decided against the motion and would act before June 30. The only way this case could be moot 294 
by May 17 is if they say it will be fully funded and that won’t happen. This is a significant issue of millions of 295 
dollars. She comments she is not saying you shouldn’t look at the potential cost of the attorneys, you would have to 296 
bear that, but it is important to watch this and maybe participate in it. Chairman Ballou thanks her for comments. Ms. 297 
Walker states, “it has been brought up in public comment and if the Board had focused on it and done some of the 298 
homework you could’ve joined the suit”. Chairman Ballou notes there is not a Board response at this point. 299 
 300 
Students from Mr. Belanger’s Honors Civil Engagement class were present. One student addressed the Board noting 301 
for their attendance to this meeting they will receive 2 points. They also do community service and the goal is to get 302 
involved. 303 
 304 
Ms. Laura Gifford, LCS school nurse spoke to thank the Board for bringing up the policy on the communication 305 
piece and notes perhaps you can put on a future agenda to provide a survey to staff to get the  306 
“pulse of morale”. She states you may get more information from the staff and get a better pulse on how they feel.  307 
 308 

XIV. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) 309 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire to enter Non-Public Session to discuss 310 

personnel matters RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) at 8:06pm. 311 

Voting: all aye via roll call vote; motion carried unanimously. 312 

 313 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to exit the non-public session at 8:28pm. 314 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 315 
 316 

 RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION 317 
The Board entered public session at 8:28pm.    318 
 319 
 A MOTION was made to seal the non-public session minutes by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire. 320 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 321 
 322 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Mr. Clark to accept the recommendation and appoint Mr. 323 
Ned Pratt, Director of Student Support Services. 324 
Voting:  eight ayes; one nay from Mr. Vanderhoof, motion carried. 325 
 326 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Mr. Clark to accept the recommendation and appoint Mr. 327 
Mark Kline, Technology Director. 328 
Voting:  all aye; motion carried unanimously. 329 
 330 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 331 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Mr. Legere to adjourn the Board meeting at 8:30pm. 332 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 333 
 334 
Respectfully submitted, 335 
Kristina Fowler 336 









The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

May 20

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road 
Lyndeborough, NH  03082 

603-654-8088

 Bryan K. Lane  Betty Moore, M.Ed. Lise Tucker
 Superintendent of Schools Director of Student Support Services Business Administrator 



The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

























Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
Strategic Planning Committee 

      

                                 Develop information for the School Board. 

05/22/18                                      

Investigate  possibility of rolling average funding formula  

 Investigated 

 Outcome‐District cannot adjusted apportionment agreement until March 2019 

School Calendar  

 Consider alternatives 

 Outcome‐Pending 

Food Service Options 

 Outcome‐Created a separate food service committee 

School Administrative Structure 

Building Utilization & Planning /Review SAU Configuration/Adding Towns 

 Demographic study 
 

 

 



Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
Goals and Objectives  

 

5.23.17 This document replaces the Good to Great Plan. These goals and objectives approved on 5.22.18. 

 

0‐12 Months  1‐2 Years  3‐5 Years 

Evaluate/improve/track student achievement 
 Determine best assessment tool 

 Define process for surveying students out of school 
 Start/continue discussions with grades 6‐10  on 
where they are going 

Consider developing a program such as trade/career 
school  or working with other districts 

 Bring in outside people to talk about career 
choices students may not be aware of  

 Tap into community resources 
Explore several options to enhance non college 
bound student opportunities 

School within a school‐charter or gifted  
program 

Increase student and staff pride and morale 

 Move toward recognizing excellence throughout 
the district by engaging staff and students with 
expanding opportunities for participation. 

 

Develop a system to follow up to determine level of 
preparedness for career/college 

 Start with 2017 graduates and follow up in 18‐19 

 

Look for opportunities for Interscholastic  Academic 
Competition 

 Granite State Challenge‐Determine when WLC is 
eligible to enter 

 Math League 

 Model UN 

 Quiz Bowl 
 Lego League 
 Calculus League 

Increased communication with town leadership 

 Attend quarterly selectmen meetings 

 

 More student involvement in district 

 Explore student leadership role at board meetings   
(non‐voting member) 

Expand and monetize the RISE program 

 Determine the amount maximum of tuition per 
state regulation 

 

Explore ways students can navigate the graduation 
process  

 Provide additional guidance support  
 Provide in house college representation 
 Affiliation with 2 & 4 year colleges 
 Provide extra support to those students who may  
not have a support system 

   

 


	WLC School Board Agenda 5.28.19
	Challenge Option Presentation-1
	Nomination-Melissa Levesque-Preschool Teacher
	nomination for Melissa Levesque-Preschool teacher
	SKMBT_75119052013330

	Resignation SS MS
	WLC School Board Draft 2 Minutes 4.30.19
	WLC School Board Draft Minutes 5.14.19
	Property & Liability Program
	Technology Audit Bids-Award 5.20.19
	Technology Audit Bids-Award 5.20.19
	technology audit

	Items for Strategic Planning Committee working Document 2019
	adopted WLC Goals and Objectives May 2018 current final

